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THE MYTOMN HOSPICES
{A company [lmited by guaranies)

TRUSTEES' REFORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

The Trustees (who ore oo drecion of tha charity for the purposes of the Companies Act) prasent
ther annual repor fogether with he oudited finoncial sictemants of The Myton Hospices [fhe
company and the group) for the year 1 Apdl 2021 to 31 March 2022,

The Trusteas confirm fhat the annual repor ond financial statements of the company and the
group comply with the current stotulony reguirements, the requinements of 1he compary and the
group’s govemning document and the provisions of thae Statement of Recommendad Practice
[SORP), opplicable to charifies preparing their occounts in ccoordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK ond Republic of Felond (FRS 102) |effective 1| Jonuwory
2019]. The Trustess have complied with the duty in the Charlties Act 2011, to hove due regard to
public benefit guidance publshed by the Chardty Commission.

Objectives and Activities
a. FPOLICIES AND OBJECTIVES

Our Vislon

Kyton Hospice believes everyone across Coveniry ond Waorwickshire showld five well fowarnds The
erd of their Ble and have the right 1o o good, natural deoth, the way they want it 1o be and with
ther loved ones supported.

Our Mizglon

The Myton teom provide high quality speciolist care to people whose condifion no longer
responds to curotive freatment, from diognosis fo death. We aim fo meel thelr physical,
psychological, spirffucl and sociol needs and ensure ther fomilies aoe wppored bofh fhrough
and after this difficulf fime. We ore committed to trgining, supporfing and encouraging othar care
providers lo proctise good poliotive care.

b. STRATEGIES FOR ACHIEVING OBJECTIVES

Our Strategy
Ouwr strotegy for 2020-2023 wos lounched pre the pondemic, and focuses on five sirolegic

c. ACTIVITIES FOR ACHIEVING OBJECTIVES

Qur services
Core and suppor for our patients and their fomilies s curently defvened in the following ways:

1é bedded inpatient unil o Warwick Mylon Hospice,

| & bedded inpatient unit at Covantry Myton Hospica.

2477 Hospice ot Home team covering the Rugby, Warwick & Leamington Spo oreos,
Coursalling ervice operating ocnoss all 3 sites.

Lymphoedema Service, mainty for those with secondary disease due fo cancer, Iving
within Coventry and Warwickshire.

+ Complementory Therapy service operaling across all three stes For pafients,
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s Phsiotheropy ond Occupoiional Theropy services, including outpatient services,
operating ocross ol thres sShes.

Spiritueal support across all three sifes.

Weallbaing Services

Living Well Service

Foligue ond Breathiesness Programme [FAB}

Flexibility and adaptability have again baen key in monoging our services fhrough tha contfinuing
pandamic, on approoch displayed by individuols throughout the cinarity.

The year has seen o gradual iransition bock to some level of namality, with patient core numbers
increasing and moving towards pre-pandemic levels in 1o the new financial year in Aprdl 2022,
Trustees are greaily oppreciofive of ihe efforis of the leadership team., stoff ond volunieers for the
supart oulcomes ochleved during arguably ihe mos challenging penod ever foced in the neor
farty year histary of the charlty, Furhermare our financial supportens cannct be inanked encugh
for supporting us through whal must have been on exdroordinarly difficult time for all. B s
tastimany fo the resillence of the charity and lis stokeholden that Myton will emerge from thea
pandemic a sfronger, leanear and even mone effective charity,

Our Strategy
Mylon hos Iived around three guarlers of the st fewo yeors of its cument three-yeor sirategy
dealing with the chalengas brought about by the global pandamic, Honethelass the five key
themes remain relevant and wil confinue to do 50 o5 the charty enters the final year before
farmulaling o revised sirategic plan frem Apdl 2023,

Feople
Ouwr People are the most important resource ond alrocting ond refaining the best folent & ouwr
gool We will confinue our focus on Equality, Diversity and inclusion, health aond welibelng, ond

jeaming and development.

AL some degree of nomalty hos been restorad during the year, Myton has pressed abead with
strengthaning thl key strand of its orgonbotional strategy. The appointment of Lz Jockson os
Director of People Sarvces enhances the lunction considenably, with Lz bdinging highly relevant
sfralegic and operational knowledge ond expedence 1o Myton. This hos driven Improvements lo
the struciure, ncluding he appointment of an Egquality, Diverity and Inclusion officar arsuing
that the deporiment proactivedy suppords ED ocross of s octivities ond  moves fowards
becoming fhe hul business pariner envisnged In stralegic planning,

Responsivenass
in recent years we have mode greal progress in becoming more pofient focused and worked
hard fo moke our services more fiexible, We will confinue o ook for opporfunifies fo foke ow
services where they are nesded and o make changes ¥ they improve accessibitly ond equify.

Agility and reactiveness have bean the key componants of dalvaring succesiul relponsivensss
for the past eightesn months, defering more developmeantal and sxsansion work until ihe post-
pandemic pericd of the strategy. commancing in Aprl 2022. With the pandemic continuing well
In to the 2021,22 finoncial yedr, the fesdbie approoches commencad during fhe previous yaar
confinued, not least remote delvery of services ond telephone suppod for potients ond carers.
A3 things begon o retum fo something ke nomol duing the find quarier of the yedor, plam
began taking shape for the roll oul of new nifiafives that will encile the finol year of the preseni
strotegy and the new 2023-24 venslon fo ochieve a "reaching more pecple, sooner” approach
fo the aclivities of the charity. The highlight of these fulure plans B the opening of the Rugby Hub
eardy in the naw financial year, with other exciting growth plons being formulated.

L

3
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Engogement
To help owr teams delfver more core and support fo the people who need us we will engoge
widely wifh individuals, volunheers, groups, organisalions. local gutharities, and health and sock
core profesionds who can helo us moke i hoppen wsing ther afffuence and influvence,

This reparf would not be compleie without expressing grotilude lor the support received beyond
reguilar funding sowrces, The yeor sow arcund £433% of exceptional funding, the majority of which
was achleved through the culstanding lkobbving on the pord of Hospice UK, with the balonce
coming from Local Authority grants for refall ond infection conirol, Nonetheless it should also be
noted thal regular sources of income, In the form of commissionad services, fundraising and
excellent froding performance through retail and oftery provided arcund 97% of all incomea,
ersuing that services remained sfrong, whilst also building financial resence and funds fo
explore further opportunities in 1he future.

Communtty
We wil always have our hosplces whene people can visit us for care and support but we will oo
look at faking our services out info the community to confoct and connect with peopie where
they ane, going fo them rather than expecting them fo come fo us.

In furtherance of the expansion plans of 1he previows year, the £100.000 grant from Barclays Bark
was used fo purchase and odopt twa Toyota Rav 45, The vehicles were purchased in the finonchad
yeor ond are now operafional in the community, while o further vehicle hos been sowced o
enable patients with mobdity ksues 1o be frarsported when required. These vehlcles confinue to
o35l the nurking teams in the Myton@Home service fo acces patients in ther own homas.

Building cn work thot commenced duing the pandemic Myton at Home is cumently working with
other Paliotive Core providers within South Warwickshire fo strengihen the curent process of
trarster of care co-ordinafion for patients in the iost & weeks of iife. Dally conference calls are
enabing efficient and effective hospltal deschange to prefered ploce of care. We hove also
infroduced The Rugby Mylon Support Hub which & @ new community based service olmed al
supporiing anyone oped 18 yean and over who i Iving with or caring for someone with o life
fimiting liness. in October 2021 a pilot programme of Information Clinkcs in GP Proctices in
Covenry was lounched = ower 100 patients and carers. hove now been seen in the Information
Hubs, more than 30 referrals have been made to Myton's senvices and more than 30 people have
bean signposted/refered to exdemnal services/providens.

Sustainabithy
To ensure fhe long tevm financial viabifty of the organisafion we will further develop some key
income sireams. We will focus on legocy markeling, maximise income from inels and grants, and
buiid relationships with potentiol major givers and infiuencers. We will also develop income from
commerciol ocfiviies inciuding ow educofion provision, We om fo become o more
envionmentally susfainoble onganisafion. enswing ow buildings are future-proofed [including
Warwick Myton which we plan fo updafe in the coming years] and using fechnology fo support
remole working and reduce fraveding and improve porking af our sifes. We will confinue fo focus
on cost improvement, collioborotion. aond efficiency fo streamiine working practices and
moximise spend on pofient cane.,

With increasing pressure on cential government, local authaority and NHS fnances, it remains
imperative for Myton to explore all avenues to secure service based, trading and fund-raised
income streams. Whilsh temporarily stunted by the excesive length of the pondemic period,
explonng new opporiunifies, as well as unlocking volue from existing contracts has remained a
pricrty and will be contirued in to the new veor and beyond,
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As we grodually relumed to fuller sloffing, the suslained success of fhe fundncising and froding
funcfions, which generote oround B0% of all income sireams into he hospice, remained pivotal
o sucoess, Commissioned services confinued fo perform wed, with growth torgeted nesdt yvear,
along wilh research 1o [dentify o3 vet unknown additional cpparturitie:. We have alio begun o
consider ways of axpanding fhe offer in our extemnal education departmant. Members of the
finance feom ore working closely with other colleagues o ensure value oplimisation and cosfing
new larget areos fo ensure that the charity can honowr all of its strotegic priorites.

d. MAIN ACTIVITIES UNDERTAKEN TO FURTHER THE CHARITY'S PURPOSES FOR PUBLIC BENEFT

Our Charitoble ocliviies are focused on offering free care and support to potients and their
fornibes from the moment they receive o diognesis thot thek liiness k icuroble. Referals are
occapled from o vanely of sources ond ploces allocoted according fo cinlcal need, We work
closely with a range of health care profassional fo ensue fhal the madmum benalils for the
patienis and the pacple that they love are achieved.

STRATEGIC REFORT
Achlevemenls aond performance
a. REVIEW OF ACTIVITIES

In Pallent Services

We have in Patient Undts (IFU) of both our Covendry ond Waorwick Hospices offerng a folal on 32
beds. In-pofient services ore ovaloble 1o anvone aged 18 ond over with o terminal lliness who
has a Coventry o Warwickshire GP, when it i the mghl thing to do ond a3 o charitablke
organsafion we will on accasion admil pafients who do nof e in the area, I they express o wish
o die in a hosplce close o relatives who do live In Coventry or Warwickshive. Pafients come info
one of ow IPU's for pain relief ond sympiom control or end of life care. 40% of pafients who are
admitled fo an IPU bed will retum home affer o stoy with us.

Significant staff shofages due fo Covid 19 severely impoactad our ability lo keep beds open
meaning that odmissions info our in-Potient Unils dropped sgnificonily compared 1o poa-
pandemic levels, In ihe parod Aprl 19 te Monch 2020 we admitted &77 pofient compared to 517
patients during 2021722, As sioffing bacomet mone resibent we ane seeing sleody Increasas In
pafient numbers each month.

Extended Home Support

Dwring the pondemic our polien! cane services adopted o the restriction: and supporied ow
patfients ond thel carers ramotaly via the phone or video. Registered nurses also contactied those
patients who would have previously attended our Day Units, providing sign posting and advice
over the phone, aslistfing them wherever posible on medical or soclal ssues. As the impoct of
e pandemic lessened ioword the end of 2021/22 Myton started fo re-infroduce foce to face
octivites clongside remote suppor.

The clinical support services including Counseling, Fotigue and Breothiessness, Living wWed,
Phiysictherapy, Cccupalional Therapy, and Psychology provided o lolol of 7,005 octivitles fo | 255
individuals.
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Mytan al Home

The sarvice continues to deliver care In o pemson's own home, working alongside the District
Hursas (DM's] ond General Prociifioners (GP's]. The Myton al Home team i curmently waorking with
NHS Specialist Palliofive Care Teams, ofher Hospice providers and District Nursing Teams within
South Waorwickshire to strengthen the cument process of frorsfer of core co-ordination for potients
in the lost & weeks of Me. Doly conference calls ore enabling efficient and effective hospital
discharge lo prefered ploce of care ond fociitaling o community based response fo avoid
hospital cdmission for those pofients olready of home who become unstable and require on
increose in core. Duing 2021/22 The Myton af Home team supporfed |44 paolienis, a decline on
the previous year when the feom suppored 187 patients.

Lymphoadama

Buring the year our Lymphoedema service confinued to suppod pafients refemed 1o Myton from
South Warwickshire Foundotion Trust and University Hospital Coventry and Warwickshire, During
pefods of lockdown comultations took ploce vilually, 346 pofients were supported by the
Lymphoedema leam, on increase of 84 pafients compared to the previous year and an increass
of 117 palients compared to 2019/20, ochieved by streng and committed leadership ond a feam
of people across all of Myton, dedicated 1o supporting pafients and fheir famibes,

The Hosplce hos Sendce Level Agreamants with the two NHS trusts, and alfracht an Income based
on the number of palients realed

b. ACHIEVEMENTS

Put simply the key ochievement of 2020/21 has been survival. That Myton has not only survived,
but cleary thrived is testimony fo the Incredibly hard work and commitment of the enfire Mylon
community, led by the fronfine staff and leadership teams. The exceptional work dellvered by
everyone across Myton in 2020721 confinved info 2021/22, enabling frontline teams fo operate
safely and effectively in exiremely chalenging and corstralned clreumstonces. Never before has
the One Mylon ethos been so evident within the dolly operations of the charty, delivering support
fo 1.504 (202021 1.413] indivicuals during the year,

The Senior Leodership Teom ond Board of Trstees have been exiremely proud of the
commitment and hard work of all of our staff during the whole of the pondemic perdod. I has
been a highly emoctional yeor and COVID-1% has directly affected many of our staff and their
familles ond we recognised the need to give them additional core and support as we confinued
lo provide cove for cur pafients ond Ihelr loved ones.

c. FINDRAISING ACTIVITIES

Our fundroising leom perfomed exceplionaly well during the pondemic. Operafing with
reguced resources and an audience alio severy offected by global crcumstances, they were
able to generate 85% of the revenues achisved in the kst pre-pandemic year, 2019/20 and
almaost idenfical sums fo 2020/21. Remarkably when including Legocy income, the result for the
year was ahead of both previous years, securng over E4m In donated and gitted funding.
supplemented by over ESm from the troding activities of the Myton Lottery and Charity Shops.
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bncer the exper siewordship of the Fundraiing leader, Chorofte ingrom, the subsidiory
Compony oversesing Refall ond Lollery activily alio oulpedommed expectolions. in a lough ond
compatifive retal market for the period in question, together They confributed over £2m nel
sunpdus o the Mylon cowse, a Be over 5% chead of the kast norma yaar of 207,200 Continuing
this success will be critical to the overoll success of the charitby,

Our fundraisng stondards:

Tha Mylon Hospices are mambers of 1he Fundraising Regulator, and we abide by Iher Fundraiing
Code of Practice which covers vianous aospects of fundraising. Wea wark firelassly fo protect our
supporters’ data, os well as evolving owr systemns fo ersure ihot our supporers can choose how
they would e fo be conlocied and with whol tvpes of communication, in complionce with the
Ganeral Data Protection Regulations. For all mofings/fcampaigns we have a dedicaled team of
staff who provide the mailing lists and an electronic process that must be complated by the
meamber of stoff aronging the maling, Doto reguests must include the fcllowing: nome of
mading, communication fype, oudience targeted and rafionale behind each person recelving
this communication. All of this dota is stored and wa have a clear audil trad that con be refemed
back to as and when it B required. We hove an income Generation Policy and abo on Etnlcal
Fundraiing Policy ond we ansura thal everyona is working within these guidselines af all meas. We
also comply with the Gamblng Commission and odhere o ol of the aosociofed codes of
proctice redafing to our lothery promotion and indeed the operating of our weekly lottery.

Lotlery carvassing is performed by an infemal teamn of cur own staff, and alo external
confracion, The staff receive on n-depth Induction when they join Myton fo ensure thaol ther
shondarck and proclises when dealing with the public are to the highest stondord. The
pedormance and practices of extemnsal lothery convasing teams ane also monitared, In order to
ensure that those teams represant the Hospice in the standards expected. Soff emploved by fhe
exfemal companiles will also visi# the Hospice and underioke fraining from our loliery feam. Al
comploints relating fo the Lottery sarvice are refemad to the Chief Execufive Officer who will than
delegale the resporsibility of invesiigation to elfher the Drector of Income Genaration or the
Lottery Manager. The Direclor of income Generalion and the Lollery Monoger ensune Thol
comploints are responded to in an appropaate manner,

Monitorng our fundralsing:

We monitor our fundroling ond lottery comvoassers’ proclices corefully, All supporier calls, emiails
and lefters are logged with summanies and key Bsues communicoted back fo the managament
team to improve fulure communications. We have a complaints policy that i adhered o for of
complaints recevad ond any isue is escalatad fo the CEG. Bach issue is than invesfigaled and

the supporier s responded fo accordingly,

Wa'ra very oware of the potential of lundrabing fo become penilent or infrsive, We hove
estobishad intemal stondards to guide how often we confoct supporders and provide clear and
simple ways for them to opl out of fulure commurications, We ask supporters for feedboack on
ihis Bsue ond continue 1o monifor the Bwe closely. Dwing the finonclal yeor 37 complaints were
received and responded o, These complaints inciude feedibock arcund lottery convassens ond
our lottery in genenal, infarmation being senl 10 o supporter. of negafive comments received
folowing o fundraksing activity or through an incident in one of our 23 shops or via our collections
sarvice,

Cur exiemal fundrasing companias hove a comprahensive Mylon induction Belfare O conyasser
represaents Myton and we ensure they ol have the comect Mylon informotion with them ond
reprasent Myton in on honest and cpen way ot ol fimas and adhane 1o our misson, values and
behaviours, We amange spof checks io ensure this s being underfaken and we act swifily if Myton
is mol represented comacily,



THE MYTOMN HOSMCES
[A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REFORT (confinued)
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 MARCH 2022

We hove estoblished o policy 1o hedp us idantify polentially vuinerable peopte ond we odhers 1o
ol reguilolions prescribed by the Gombling Commission and Fundrasing Regulofor. With ouwr
loftery promolion. we erdure that ol of ouwr supporfers are fully understanding of our koifary ask
and if we are ever concemed that an individugd moy be vulneroble, we woulkd apply follow up
commiunicafions fo ensure the individual was hopey wih on ogreement before any payment is
taken, Wa hove a resporsibity fo ensure each enfront must be ot least 14 veon of age.

d. INVESTMEMNT POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

The valde of invesiments i £4.773,085 (2020421 - £3,701,351). The investment fund includes £67,500
relaling to the value of the land of Brounston of which Mylon Rolds a share asd £45,.354 being
the shoreholdings in The Promotiors Company. The remaining bolonce i held in o long famm
Irvesiment portfolio moneged by Brewin Dolshin, the retums on the investmeants dusing the year
are paid as an income to the chasty,

The charifles reserve policy stales thal the reseryes Balonce is held in irvesiments, When the cosh
bolonces of fhe orngonisolion ore above the levelk nesded in warking copiial the Finance and
Audit Commiltes agree o move more funds inlo investments fo erswee the best rafe of retum s

Qensnched

Recovery from the effects of the COVID-1¥ pondemic impacied e invesiment mokeais, with ihe
porfolic seeing o steady e in value, cugmenied by the transter of £1m in Oclober 2021 from
cash held, The inal quar e was disappointing os news of he troublesin Ukraine ond oiher foctors
saw investmeni market values fall by arpund 5%

Investment Balance movement between April 2020 and

March 2022
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Flnanelal review
a. 2021-22 FINANCIAL PERFORMAMNCE

The Charlty’s Morogement Boord ogreed on openafing defcll budge! of E533k befora
imvesirment gairs/losses for fhe year 2021,/22,

The cost savings ochleved in fhe prior veor coupled with the excellent mancgement of the
charity and superb operafing performance sow an outstanding year end resull, with net incomea
before invesiment gainsiosies of £439,742 (2020421 - £1,837.3%0 achieved in a heovily grant
subsidised year), The cash surplus dses o £719.844 [2020/21 - £2,352,4%0) once depreciafion s
added back. The overall increase in funds, arived ol by adding investment gains fo

surplus |5 £603,382 (2020721 - £2,397.917). In a lorgely uraubsidised year, the inslees ore rightly
proud of the finonclal performance of the charly,

Income

Extracrdinary Income
In the finonclal yveor 2021/22 and 2020021 ond o a resull of the comonaviius pondamic the
Hospice received 2434k of exraordinary income from various agencies:

The govemmen's Job Retention Scheme was utilsed, with some stoff being roughed during
the year. In fotal the Hospice received E37,712 in fudough Income in the year (2020721 - EFO7. 773,

The Ralall, Hospitality and Lesure Indusine granis appled o ouwr shops, and in the year £81,337
was received from four different local autharities as part of 1his scheme [2020/21 - £335,197).

Hospice UK octed guickly on behall of all Hosplces in the UK of tha start of fhe pondemic and
appaaled for funding o support Hospices during the pondemic, Hospices provide key services
o patients, and confinued 1o do so throughout the pandemic, ond yet on averoge in Englond
hosplces only receive 32% of the funding that they need through statutory funding. with Myton in
recespl of st 20%. The govemmen! gronfed E200m per quorter o be ovailable to suppor
Hospices. Hosplce UK held the fund for this scheme and designated the funds o Hospices within
the guidance set by the NHS. The Myton Hospices received £239,733 of funding through this grant
(2020721 - £1,564,152).

Locol outhoniles gronied infection coniral grants fo organbaiion: such as Mylon, The funding was
restricted for the e on infection coniral measuras such os PPE. and paying clinical stalf full pay
when fhay wama required o iscdabe. Funding under this grant wos recaived from both Coventry
City Council ond Waorwick District Council and totoled £90, 748 |2020/21 - £102.87 4],

HHS Granl Income
MH5 Gronts decreosed by &% overall in 2021722 1o £2.475,722 from £2,654, 1 4% in 2020/21. Included
Inincome in 2020/21 was a one off grant of £200,000 from Coventry and Rugby CCG fo suppart

the Hospice through the pandemic.

Thare are threa elemeants to fhe NHE funding, the main block confroct with heo local CCEG's;
Coventry and Rugby COG [CRCCG] and South Wansdckshire COG |[SWCOG). hie Mylon ot Homa
confract for the service in fhe Rugby orea (CRCCG), ond the Mune Led Bed confract which
commenced in November 2015 [CROCG).



THE MYTOMN HOSPICES
{A company imied by guaraniee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT [continued)
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 MARCH 2022

Tha Myton ot Homea Controct remained static (202122 - £154.080, 2020421 - £154,080). The Murse
Led Bed contraci with Coveniry and Rugby CCG changed from funding six beds in Covening's
in-patient unit to funding only fhvee rom the 19 Apdl 2020, Income relating 1o fhie confract in
2021/22 wos 156,452 (2020421 - £156.444).

Denatiens and Legacies
Durng H21,,22 income Fom donotiors and legocies totolled £4,243, 384, a 12,78 Increase on the
previous yeor [2020/21 - E3,785,178). Legocias leff 1o the hospice in 2021/22 wera £1,749.597, an
mcrecse on fhe pdor veor (2020721 - £1,306,513), Denafions sow an increase yaar on year with o
total of £2.442.787 being donated by our supporters [2020/21 - £2,458,6565),

Troding Company Income (Mylon Hosplee Promolions Limibed)

Refail confinued fo suffer through fhe affects of the pandemic but as the yvear progressed got
sfronger, wilimolely cchieving sales figures in excess of budget, which when combined with
reduced costs produced a bottom line result substantially aheod of budget and of the prior year.

Gross retal ncome totalled £2.044, 347 In 2021 /22 (2020/21 - EF74.754),

Gross income from Lottery hos seen a small increase in 2021722 to £2,167.35] {2020/ -
E2,140,631), The net contibulion from our Lottery senvices was comparable fo each of the Iost
two yeors o well as being ahead of the budget for the yeor. Refentlion and stabllity have been
the key performance measwe, so it & encouroging Ithal ploying numbens hove fallen by o
negligible sum in the year, The fofol rumber of lotery ines being plaved af the 31 March 2022 is
28,293 (2030721 - 38.408]. In o very compelitive sector of charity / society loHerdes, Myton sill
migintaing the largest dngle hospice lottery in tha UK

Direct Cosis of Poltent Care

Direct costs of pafient care totalled £6,527 447 (2020/21 - £6,421,570). As odmissions continue fo
refum fo nomal hstofcol levels, so the direct costs of patient care increcsed on those of 2020021,
with on expectation of increased patient numbern ond therefore costs from April 2022,

indirect Pallent Care Costs

The combinofion of efficlency meosures and reduced aclivity resulfed in total indirect costs
reducing In the year, with the lotier expected o rse in the 2022/23 financial year. The totals wene
E1,199,702 [2020/21-£1,236,417) o 3% decrease on the priar year,

Total Funds

Al the year end. the fotal funds of the group stood af £15,440,147 [2020/21 - £14,856,785) including
restricted funds which lotalled £147 825 (2020021 - £1%2.037). The asefs reprasanting each of
fhese hunds are analysed in Mote 22 fo the financiol stotements.

b. GOING CONCERN

Afer moking oppropriate enquides, the trustess hove o reasonoble sxpeciaficn tha! the
company hos adequate resources fo confinue In operafionol exlstence for the foreseeable
future. For this reason they conlinue fo adopl the going concerm basis in preparing the inancial
statemenis. Further dedails regarding the odoplion of the going concem bosis con be found in
the Accounting Policies,
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THE MYTOM HOSPICES
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TRUSTEES' REPORT [continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

. FRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

& risk register for the charlty & mainiained and reviewed by the Tnsteeas ot each commithes [bi-
monthiy] and then annualy at the Trust Boord meefing. Currently the fop five coponate risks ara
as follows:

1.

Veluntary income In the coming year, With the generous suppord of our donor base the
fundraking team have performed incradibly wel throughout the pandamic. This will neesd
to be astoined, parficularly since there i lithe lkelhood of govermment and KHS crisis
grani fumding In fulure, placing even greater emphosi for success on volunlary income.
Growing Inflation, the cost of ving orisis and the ongoing confict in Ukraine means domnons
pockais wil potentiolly be less deep as the year unfolds. Mitigafion will toke the form of a
fully staffed fundralsing leam, restored following some reduchions af the height of the
pondemic, os well o no sione unfumed approach fo seeking oul more from existing
sources ond new inlthatives,

Staff recrultment and retention. The curtent recruitment market & highly chailenging ond
there & o risk ihol good guality sioff ore nol ovollable §o fill the gops within our feams. In
addition to the inability to recruit ks the odded risk of higher pay driven by a shorfoge of
people where other employers lure sialf oway from fhe charity secior, In genenal the jobs
markel reflects a pered of adjwiment, and whist the NHS organisafions are seeing o
good response whan recrulling, there ane areas within the Haspice unabile 1o atioct good
quality candidates to fil voconcies. There i some talk of shortoges of good fundraising
staff sector wide but through provision of sirong people services, we have thus far baen
able o recrull effectively but connot be complacent in fris regord. The some diligence s
being applied to the recruitrment of volunfesrs.

The resiflence of the medical and nursing leams. Whilst we sovw greater sfability during the
latter pon of 2021 722 we confinue (o expatence some daruption 1o service, through eltner
sickness or inabiity fo recrull stalf, The difigence., professionallsm and effeciiveness of our
people function forms o key defence to this challenge, with the major concem being the
unikno impoch of the regrowth of the pandemic sk o3 we heod in 1o winfer 2022,

Shalf and voluntesr wellbeing ond reslllence. The lotter port of the financial year sow
significan fime ond resource investment in the people services funclion of the
onganisafion, A full team is batler able to sarvice tha multiple neeads of the substantial paid
and unpoid employee basa of the charity. The deployment of surveys, a new staff forum
and other inifiatives ore baing iImplemented fo look ofter owr most vital rescurce, as Myfon,
ki the world af kege moves bayond 1he pandemic.

The Coronavirus pandemic. A5 we approach winter there remalns greal concem that the
naflanal ond infemational situotion could refum 1o former challenging levels. As we know
the poncemic poses mulliple fdks 1o the sustainability of cur organsafion, Including rsk fo
haalth and wellbeing of our stalf and volunieerns, which in lum represents a risk 1o service
delivery. The potential of further Iockdown restriciions meons thare i o risk to ihe supply of
food, fual and ofher goods and our abllity o genarate volunfary funds, which could mean
risks fo owr short term business continuity and long term financial sustainabdity. The offer
effects of events 1o dole continue to mpoct the charly, in the fom of supply chdan
difficultias and stoff recruitment ond retention chalenges.



THE MYTON HOSPICES
{A company limited by guaraniee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (confinued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

d. REZERVES POLICY

The resenves policy wias reviewed duwing the year and increased from fhree mionths of running
costs to four montha, or around E4m. The funds are hald in a long-lerm, medium risk ivastment
porfclo. Additional reserves are held for the pupose of a future Estoles Strofegy ond other
opportunifies to grow service provision, with funds allocated through o series of designated funds.

Total funds of the group of the yeor end stood al £15,440,147 [2020/21 - £14,854,785). Restricted
funds fotolled £147.825 (2020/21 - £192,037) and unrestricted funds totaliad £15,312,342 [2020/21
- £14.444,748), Free reserves of the group ot the year end, stood at £539,240 [2020/21 - £430,154),

Designoted funds fololled £14,773, 102 (2020721 - £14,034,574) which is made up of the following
funds:

o feed osel fund of £7,345.014 [2020/21 - £7.590.719).

« investment fund of £4,773,085 [2020/21 - £3,701.351).
the service expansion fund of £114,730 (2020721 - £142,524) and the Warwick hospice
improvements fund of £500,000 [2020/21 - £500,000).

Further designated funds have been agreed as project funds for projects that the st boord
have agread will help the sustainability of fhe orgonBation financially and will exiend the reach
of the Hospice fo those who cumently are not able to occeds Hospice services:

Estales and equipment fund E47,77%

Hosploe oulside of The walls project £488, 547
Digital stralegy and transformation project £181.945
4 bads in Waredck £300,000

Hospice recovery from the pondemic £1,000,000

The cssets representing eoch of these funds ore analysed in Note 22 to 1he financial siatemeants.

@ FRINCIPAL FUNDING

The Hospice B owore thal fhe commissioning of end of He services ocross Coveniry and
Warwickshire is likedy lo change in the coming years os CCG's work colaboratively to commission
services. Mylon is ensuring ifs presence in these commissioning munds, ond working 1o protect
ard grow this valuable income.

Myton i also working collaborafively with ofher healthcore organisations and hospices 1o offer
commissioned services where appropriate within the Coveniry and Warwickshire area,

Struclure, governance and management
a, CONSTITUTION

The company and the group is reghtered as a charftable company limited by guarantes and
wias st up by o Memorandum of Assccialion on 25th Februsary 2009, The cormpany and tha group
& consfifuted under o Memorandum of Association dated 25fh February 200% and s a registerad
charity, numier 516287, The principal object of the company and the group i to provide core
to patients and their families in the Coveniry and Warwickshire area, from the fime fhat fhey
recaive the diognosis thot fheir liness i incuroble.
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THE MYTOMN HOSPICES
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TRUSTEES' REPORT [confinued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

b. METHOD OF APPOINTMENT OR ELECTION OF TRUSTEES

The Boord of the Mylon Hospices is made up of nol lass than £ Trustess, and no more {han 12, of
which 2 of the oles must be medicol represanfatives. Al Trusteas are appointed for an inilial
pefod of three yeor, commencing with the fit Annuol Generol Mealing following fheir
appointmant and may apply for re-alection 1o sarve up fo three terms, eoch of which k o period
of thres yaars. Aler serving o third period, the Direcior must step down. bul may offer nim/henealf
for re-alection after o penod of twalve mondis,

Al Trustees are regilered volunteers, recognised as Directors of The Mylon Hospices on the
Companiss’ Howse records and members of the chordty, The Board ks ulfimotely responsible for
Mylon Hospices care, finances, buildings and compliance. The Trstes Boord are aoccounioble
to the Care Quaolty Commission, Companias Housa, the Gambling Commission, and the Charity
Commission for thelr activities ond those of the hospices reloted.

. POLICIES ADOQFTED FOR THE INDUCTHON AND TRAINING OF TRUSTEES

Trustees are provided with o programme of induction including meeting with ol of the execulive
tearn and any other key personnel In order to gouge an undersfanding of how the hospice wiarks
on a doy fo day bosh. Trslees ore encourcged to spend fime within the clinicol areas of the
haspice, and o attend fundraising evenis,

d. FAY POLICY FOR SENIOR STAFF

Waorking in the Charity sector Mytan beleves thal it s impoariant to be ransparent about fne pay
levels of ifs senior monogers and how thosa salaries are sat. Our salaries are benchmoarked ogainst
simnilar rodes In fthe Midionds charity sechor using on extemal independent UK salary database. For
all rofes, including senlor posts, Myton's pay strotegy ks for salarias to be between the lower anrd
median quarfiles for equivalent positions, with some lexibilily applied to take info considenotion
the specific requirements for eoch post and fo ensure thol we con recrull and retain he best
people for the role with both the skils required and the passion for the service,

Dur execulive team B moce up of the folowing roles:

Chief Exacutive Officer

Medcal drector *

Director of Nursing, Core and Service Development
Director of Finance and Commercial Development
Director of Peoaple Senvices

Director of Corporale Resources

Direcior of Income Genenglion and Supporter Engogemeant

*Our Medical Director is employed by Soulh Waorwick NHS Foundation Trust, ond provides 50% of
their ime as Medical Director ond 50% of their time as o Corsultant in Pallialive Medicine, caring
for our paflents.

The folal annuwal cosis during 2021/22 of the Senior Leadership Team who are smployed by kylon
are E470.000 pa (net of Ml and pension costs) (2020021 - £44%,000).
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&, ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE AND DECISION MAKING

There ore clear disinctions beftwaen ihe roles of Tnsiees and the executive feam, The boord of
tnustess holds arange of reserved matters ond delegates ceroin authority lo the executive teom
in order to un the orgonisotion efficlently. Matten such o3 policy, sirategy ond budgets ane
prepared by the execulive team for consideration ond approval by the frustees whao then
monitor fhe implementotion of these plans, There are a number of board committees, all with
clear tenms of relerence. They have elected members of both the board of trustess ond the
execulve feom who hoave been selected for their porficular skills, experdence and knowledge.
Committes’s meel of least once per quorier and report info the main board meetings.

The cammitteas are os folows:

o Chnicol Governonce Commithes, which s responsible for potient care, safety, aciivity and
cpuality.

»  Finance and Audit Commitiee, which monifors the Charity's inancial posifion,

¢ The ncome Generofion Commilles [Trading Board For the Myton Hospice Promotions
Company| which monitors fha fundnoking acfivities of the froding company

= The People and Workforce Commities, this committes is resporsible for staff welibeing.
recruliment, retention and training.

« The information Govemance Committee, which moniton data securily and information
govemance of the organisafion,

* The Markefing Commitiee, which & responsible for the public image of the charity,
including both intemal and extemal commuricalions,

Charlty Governance Code

The trusteas are aware of ihe new guidonce and a gevermancea review was undariaken 1o assess
the chority’s complionce with the guidelines. Mony oreas of recommended proctice wene
olready being followed by the orgonsations and an acllon plan was devised fo oddres any
oreas where improvement could be mode. Areas such as the frusles induction progromme have
been reviewad and sirengthened. as hove the odminstnation ond storage of the minules and
papers from commitfee ond boord mestings. Tha frustees’ declanations and registers of the
charifies haove beenimproved ond formaiied in Bne with the guidonce. Prograss against the plan
is monitored of fthe Monogemen! Board meefings.

L RISK MANAGEMENT

The Hospice s commitied fo effective fisk manogement as an integral part of ensuring good
corporate govemance, Risk can be to pofients ond relotives, stoff, finonclol, or reputational. The
exacutive feam have recognised a need for ongoing management of risks 1o the argankation,
Yhan risks are identified thay are allocoted 1o a member of the sxeculive feaom, and that leam
member bacomes responsible for identifying oclions to be 1oken to miligate the risk.

Each goveming commitfes reviews the risks associated with their area of expertise. As nstees,
ihe boord concentrates s efforts on enswing the mosi sedous risks are being manoged
effectively, The Hospice confinues to improve and refine the risk managemani processes, The fop
Fivar risks for the Hospice af the 315t March 2027 are a3 follows:

Yoluntary income in ihe coming yedr,
The resilience of the medical team,
Sloff wellbeing and reslience.

Shaff recrnatment.

The Coronavins pandamic,
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TRUSTEES' REPORT [continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

The Tnalees hove assessed the major rsks to which the company and the group B exposad. in
parficulor thote reloled to the oparctions and finonces of the compony ond the group. end are
safisfied that syshems ond procedures ars in ploce 1o mitigale our exposune fo 1he mojor sk

@. TRUSTEES' INDEMMITIES

Euaitying third party iIndermnity provision |5 In ploce for the benefil of all Trustess of the charitable
company. This cover is up 1o £1,000.000 and costs £1.808.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

On the cautious asumption thal the worst of the pandermic & behind us, Ine yeor cheod will
focus heavily on corsolidating the excelent work corried out by the argansation in novigating it
wiary hrough the fremendous chaollanges presented over the kst two plus years.,

With all ncome sirearma reluming 1o someihing near normal, the emphasts will tronsfer fo growth
ond developrment, seeking genuine opportunities fo invest e designoted funds fo reach more
patients aond reach them sconer as the nesw yaar unfalds,

There wil be o fwiher push fo ensure thot the cost economies ochieved during the pandamic
confinue to be oplimised, aifhough restoring full staffing levels in key areas wil be pivotal to future
success. Futhermore, restordng the numiber of voluniserns 1o pre-pondemic levels of over 1,000 w3l
also be key lo reaching the key cbjeciives.

Trading aclivities were resurgent lowards the end of the year and highly promising in the early
part of 2022/23, wilh greal expeciation that the sireamiined relall am of the charity will deliver
even greater oulcomes going forsard. As yel, the loflery shows no signs of being impacied by
the difficulfies brought about fhrough the confiict in Ukngine and cost of Bving crisks, Iherelone
confinves lo generale significant and much needed suppor to the chaity's finoncial
pefarmaonce.

With increxased finoncial peformaonce we hope 1o be incredsing the number of beds in each of
fhe in patient units ot Worwick and Coventry. as well as reaching more banefciaries in their
homes and throwgh our broader offering. Fundiraising plays a huge role in achieving 1hese targets,
with key appointments being made 1o reinfroduce o il workforce a3 we sirive 1o access existing
ond naw donors 1o oplimise wihal remaing the most susceplibbe yet vilal of our sounces of income,

A proporfion of ow core hospice services require bunding directly from sevenal NHS frusis, so
negoficting on the lerms will ploy on important part of fulure success. Securing commercial
outcomas will be nacessary to ensure thal the foundotions of oll that we do poy thelr way and
pave ihe way for even more effeciive we of the funds so generously provided on a volunfary
bosis, The new year commeanced with a significant push on the health and wellibeing of staff.
incihuding o rebronded slaff forum ond greater emphdasis on heclih, os well as the safety of our
team.

FUNDS HELD A% CUSTODIAN

The Charity acts as an agent in administering funds for "GP PRS Education” on beholl of fhe MHE,
Arn amount of 11,289 [2020/21 - £19,2548) i included in olher credilons reloling o undisiibuled
funds. The Chartty acts as an agent in administedng funds for "dificult convenafiors™ on behalf
of the NHE. An amount of ENIl (2020721 - E2.561), Is included in other creditors resafing fo
urdistributed funds.,
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

FEOPLE WITH DISABILIMES

Employees have been consulted on ssues of concem fo them by meaors of regular consullative
commities and stoff meefings and hove been kept informed on specific matters direcily by
management. The company and the group canes oul exit interviews for all staff leoving the
crganisotion and has adopled o procedure of upword feadbock for senior management ang
the Tnelaes,

The company and fhe group nos implemented o aumber of deloled poficies in realation 1o of
aspects of parsonnel maliers including:

Equality, Diversity & Inclusion [EDI) poficy
- Voluntean' policy
. Hedilh & sofety policy
In occordance with the company and the group's EDI Folicy, the company ond the group has
long estobished lair employment practices in the recrultment, selection, retention and training
of disabled staflf,

Full dedails of these policies ore available from the compoany and the group’s offices.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 20223

TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

The Trustess [who are also directors of The Myton Hospices for the purposas of company low] are
rasponsible for preparing the Trustess' report and the finoncial siotements In occordance with
appiicable low and United Kingdom Accounting Stondords [United Kingdom Generally
Accepied Accounting Proctice).

Company law reguines the Trusleas to prepord Rnancial statemants for each fimanciol yaar, Under
company aw the Trusiess must not approve the fnanclal stotements urdess they ore solisfed thot
they give o tnee and fair view of ihe stote of offals of the choltable company and the group
and of the incoming resowrces ond application of resowces, including the income ond
axpenditure, of the charilable group for that perod. In preparnng these financial siataments, the
Trustees are required fo:

sedect sultable occouniing pobcies; ond then apply them consisienily;

observe fthe methods ond principles in the Charifies SORP;

make judgments and accounting estimates that are reascnoble and prudent;

prepare the finoncial stotements on the going concem bosis unless T s Inoppropricle 1o
presume that the charitoble group will continue In operation.

Tha Trustees are resporsibbe for keepang adequate accounting records that are sufficient o show
and axplain tha charitable company and the group’s ronsociicns and disclose with reasonable
occuraocy at any fime the finonciol position of the chorfoble group and enoble tham o ensura
that the fimonchal siofements comply with ihe Companies Act 2006, Thay one alio resportible for
sofeguarding the osets of the chorloble compoany and 1he group ond hence fof laking
reasonobia steps for the pravention aond deteclion of roud ond othear imegularities.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITOR

Eoch of tha persors who are Trusteas at the lime when this Tnstess report & approved hos
canfirmed that:

* so for o3 that Trustee s oware, there & no relevant oudit informabion of which the
chorliable group's auditon s unoware, and

" that Trustes hos laken all the steps thol cught o have been taken as o Trustee in order to
be aoware of ony relevant oudit information and o estabiish thoat the charitable group's
auditoris oware of that formation,

This report was approved by the Trustess, an 20 July 2022 and signed on thair behalf by:

AT

Mr K W Demian
Cholrman
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THE MYTON HOSPICES
(A company limied by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE MYTON HOSPICES

QPINION

Wea hove oudited the finonciol stofements of The Mylon Hospices (the ‘poreni charity] ond s
subsidiaries {fhe 'group’] for the year ended 31 March 2022 sl out on poges 21 1o 51. The financiol
repording fromework that has been applied in their preporation s opplicoble law ond United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)
inciuding Financial Repoding Standard 102 The Fnoncial Reporting Stondard applicobls in the
UK and Repubéc of redand’,

In cur opinion the financiol stotements:

. give a frwe ond foir view of ihe sfate of the group's and of the parent chartoble
compary's affairs o3 al 31 March 2022 and of the group's Incoming resources and
application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;

5 have bean propery prepared in occordonce with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Proctice, and -

. hove been prepared in accordance with the reguirements of the Compaonies Act 20048,

BASIS FOR OPIMION

Wa conducted our oudit in accordance with Infemalional Standards on Auditing [UK) [I5As [UK))
and appicable low, Ow responsiclities under ihose staondards are furher describad i the
Auditors responsibiifies for the oudil of fhe financial stotements section of our report, We are
independent of the group in occordance with frie ethical requirements thot are relewant o ouwr
audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including the Finoncial Reporfing
Councils Ethical Mtandard, and we have fulflied ow other ethical responsibiiifies in occordance
with These requirements, We belleve thot the oudit evidence we have cbtalned is sufficient and
appropiate 1o provide o basis for cur opinion.

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING COMCERN
In gudiling the finoncial stotements, we have conciuded thal the trustess’ ute of the going
concem bosis of accounting In the preporation of he financial stotements & opproprate.

Based on the work we hove parformed, we have not identified ory material uncer ainties relofing
to events or condifions that, individually or colectively, may cost sigrificant doubt on the
charitoble company’s abilfy to conlinue o3 o going concem for a period of of least twalve
mionths from when the financsol statements are authorised for lssue.

Ouwr responsibilifies and the resporsiblifies of the ustees with respect to going concemn ore
dascribed in the relevant seclions of this repord.

However, the COVID-1% viral pondemic i one of the mast significont economic evants for the UE

with unprecedented level of uncerainty of cutcomes. It ks therefore difficult to evaluate all of
the polential implications on the choritable company and the wider economy.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE MYTOMN HOSPICES

OTHER INFORMATION

The Tnslees ore responsible for the other information. The oiher informotion comprses the
information included in the Annual repor. ofher than the Fnoncial stoterments and our Auditon’s
repart thereon. Our opdnion on the financial statemants does not cover the ofher infomation and,
axcept to the adent oiherwise explicifly stated n our reporl, we do not exprass any feem of
asumance conclision fhereon. in conneclion with our audlt of the finoncial stotements, owr
responsibilty s fo read the other information ond. In doing %o, comsider whethar the other
information is matedally inconsistent with the financial statemants ar cur knowledge abiained in
the oudit or otherwise appears o be matedally misstated. IF we identify such materal
Inconsistencles or oppareni material misstatements, we ore required o determine whether fhene
s o materal misstalement in fhe finoncial statements or o material missiotement of the other
information. If, based on ihe work we hove performed, we conclude 1hat there B o motedicl
misstatement of this olher informaolkion we are required fo repaort that foct. Wa hove nothing ho

repaor in this regard,

OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2004

In our opirion, basad on he work undericken In the course of fhe audit:

" the informalion given in the Trustees' Repod for the inancial year for wihich T BRancial
siofemients ore prepared is consient with the finoncial stotements.

L the Trustess' Report and the Group Stroteglc Report hove been prepared in occardance
with appicable legal reguirements,

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REGUIRED TO REFORT BY EXCEPTION
In tha ight of owr knowiadge and undarstanding of the charfable company and ifs envircnmeant
obtained in the course of the audi, we have not idenflfied matedol missiotements in the Trustees’

Report,

We hove nothing fo repart in respect of the folowing matters in relafion to which the Companies

EIMML&MmmﬂmMH in our opinion;
the poment chorifoble company hos not kepl odequate ond sulficient accounting
reconds, or retums adequate for ouwr audit have ol been received from branches not
visited by us; or

L] the porent chorifoble company fimoncial siatemenis ae not In ogreament with the
occounting records and redums: or

» ceraln disclosures of Trustess’ remuneration specified by low ore nol mode: or

. wa have not received ol Ihe infommation and explanabions we require for our aud,

RESPOMSIBILITIES OF TRUSTEES

As explained more fully in fhe Trustees’ resporsibififies stolement, the Tnelees [who are also the
direcion of the chorlobée company for the purposes of company low) e responsible for The
preparation of the financial statemants and for being safisfied that thay give a true and fair view,
and for such intemal conircd o3 the Tnustees determine i necessary to enable the preporafion of
financial stofements that ore free from maoteral missiclement, whether due to froud or ermor,

In praparing the fnoncial statements, the Truslees are responsiie for assassing fhe group's and
the parent chonloble comparny’s oblity to confinue o5 o geing concem, diclosing. s
applicable, malten related 1o going concem and wsing the going concam basis of accounting
uniass the Trusieas sithar infend to liquidate the group or the parent charitoble company or 1o
cease oparatiors, or have no rediisfic attermative but to do so.
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THE MYTON HOSPICES
(A compaony Omiled by guaranbes)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 7O THE MEMEBERS OF THE MYTON HOSPICES

AUDITOR'S RESPOMSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE INANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our ojectives ore fo obialn reconable oswurance obout whether the financial stofemants as a
whole ore free from malerial mssiatement, whether due to fraud or aror, and fo issue an Auditors
repart that includes our opinion. Reasanable assurance is a high level of ossurance, but k not o
guaranies thal an oudil conducted in occordance wilh 1545 (VK] will alwoys delect o maoteral
misstatemant when it exists. Misstalements con arlse from froud or eror ond ore consldered
matedal If, individugally or in the oggregale, they could reasonably be expecied fo influence the
economic deciions of users token on the basis of these fnancial statemants.

Iregulanities, inchading frawd, are insfances of non-compllance with lows and regulafions, We
design procedures in fine with our regpondlbilifies, oulined above, 1o delec! maledal
misstatemeants in respect of imeguicifies. including fraud, The specific proceduraes for this
engogement and the extent 1o which these are capable of detecting regularities, Inchueding
froud s defailed below:

«  Auditing the risk of monogement override of coninols, including through testing joumal entrias
and other odjustments for opproprotaneass;

+  Reviewing minutes of maefings of those charged with govermance; ond

»  Enquiry of monagement fo idenfify any instonces of non-complionce with lows and
reguialkions.

Bacousa of the inherent limilations of an oudit, there s o sk ihal we will not detect ol imegulonities,
incheding those leoding to amaterial misstatement in the financial statemants or non-compiance
with reguiation. This risk increases the mare thal complionce with o low or regulation & removed
from the evenis and rorsoclions reflected in the financial stotements, as we will be less lkely fo
become oware of inslonces of non-compliance. The risk B also grealer regarding Imeguicrities
occuming due o froud rother than eror, os froud Involves intentlonal conceaiment, forgery.
colusion, omisslon or misreprasantation,

& further descripiion of our responsibiifies for the audit of the financial siotements & locoted on
fhe Finonciol Reporting Council's websile ot www. rcomgukfouditorsesponsibilifias,  This
descripfion forms part of ow Audilors reporl. We communicale with those chorged with
govemance regerding, among ofher matters, the planned scope and timing of the oudit and
significent audit findings. including any significant deficisncies in infemal control that we identify

during our audil.

USE OF OUR REPORT

This repart Is moade solely fo the chorfaoble compony's membens, of 0 body, in accordance with
Chopier 3 of Porf 14 of the Companies Acl 2008, Cur audit work ot been undarfaken so thal we
might stale 1o the charloble company's members those matters wa are required to state to tham
in an Auditor's report and for no othar purpose, To the fulest extent pemitied by kow, we do not
accepl or assume responsility fo anyone other than the chorftable company and its memien,
as a body, for our audit work, for this repord, or for the opinions we hove formad,

Gragg Ciner MPhil BA [Hons] ACA [Senior Statuiony Audiion

For and on behalf of Harison Beale & Owen Limited

Chartered Accounianis ond Slatulory Auditors

ERgicta to oct o3 an auditor in lems of Sacfion 1212 of the Comparias Act 20048
i1 Highdown Road

Leomingion Spa

Warwickshira

VAT 15T

20 July 2022
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THE MYTON HOSPICES
(& company imied by guarantae)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCLAL ACTIVITIES INCORPORATING INCOME AND

INCOME FROM:
Donations and legocies
Charitable ociivities
Ciher roding oclivilies
Invrastmierits

COthar incomea

TOTAL INCOME

EXPEMDITURE OM:
Raking funds:
Voluntary and trading incoma
Irvesirmeni maonagement
Charitable octivilies
TOTAL EXFENDITURE

MET INCOME/EXPENDITURE) BEFORE
INVESTMENT GAINS/(LOSSES)
Met gairs on investrnents

MET INCOME/{EXFEMDITURE) BEFORE
TRAMSFERS
Transfers between funds

MET INCOME/{EXFENDITURE) BEFORE
OTHER RECOGHNISED GAINS AND
LOSSES

MET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS

RECONCIUATION OF FUNDS
Total funds brought fonaand

EXPFEMDITURE ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Unrestricled  Restilcled Talal Tofol

funds funds funids furpals

Hole i | HrEd 2022 22

£ £ 4 E

3 4219, 764 473350 4473004 &TRDET4

A 2539077 = 2,529,077 2,659,403

5 4,262 451 - 4,263 651 3,005,750

& 3.3 H 733N TO.732
28813 - 28,813 15,890

11,133,626 473 350 11,406.576 Ji.ﬂﬁrﬁ'

B 3,015,148 3,016,168 2959587

22,657 - 22677 17073

7,706,395 422754 8,129,149  7.457.989

T 10,744,240 422 754 11147014 10,434 720

389,344 50,594 439,942 1 B37 880

143,420 - 153420 550007

552,784 50,596 403 2832 2agFenr

74,808 (74.808) - =

LT 594 {dd.212) 403,382 2397017

447 594  (44.212) 403,382 2397917

14,664,748 192037 15,5_51.?&5 |2 4568568

15.312.342 147,825 15.460,167 (4,856,785

TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD

The notes on poge 24 to 51 form port of these fnancial stalemeants,
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THE MYTOMN HOSMCES
{A company limited by guarantes)

CONSOLUDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES INCORFORATING INCOME AND
EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

INCOME FROM:
Dorafions ond legocies
Charitable octivilles
Oiher frading activities
Irvesirments

Cibvar come

TOTAL INCOME

EXFEMNDITURE OMN:
Raking funds:
VMolurbary and lrading income
Irvastmeant manogamant
Charitable octivifies
TOTAL EXPENDITURE

HET INCOME/{EXFENDITURE) BEFORE
INVESTMENT G AINS/[LOSSES)
Mat gairs/{lossas] on investments

HEHHCD#E![IHI‘UII] BEFCRE
TRANSFERS

Transfars between funds

MET INCOME f{EXPENDITURE) BEFORE
OTHER RECOGHISED GAINS AND
LOSSES

NET MOVEMENT |N FUNDS

RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS
Totad funds brought foreard

TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD

L1l

B Oh e L

Untrestricled Rosticled Total Total
funds funds funds furds

i rd] 2021 2 2020

£ £ E E

4,700,536 20138 4720474 4487873
2,659,603 - 2459403 2487893
J005.720 = 3005730  4.595.435
70,732 . 70.732 89679
15,890 - 1.5.5%0 75,000

10457481 2015138 12.472.619 11915880

2.950.667 = RRSRAST 3512417
17,073 - 17.073 14371
5837351 I F $89 5435833

8814071 | 820658 10634729 11965621

1,643,410 194,480 1837890  [49.74])
560,027 x 40,027  [374.053)

2,203,437 194,480 2397917  [323.794)
58,428  [sma%8) i .

2,242,065 135852 2397917  [323.7%4)

2,262,065 135,852 2397917  [323.794)

12,402,683 56,185 12458848 12782 842

14664748 192,007 14856785 12.458,868




THE MYTON HOSPICES
(A company limited by guarantee)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2022

Hale

FIXED ASSETS
infongible assets
Tangible assets
Invastmants

14
15
14

CURRENT ASSETS

Stocks

Debton

Cosh al bank and in hand

18
¥

CREDITORS: amounis falling cdue
within ocne year

MET CURRENT ASSETS

MET ASSETS

CHARITY FUNDS
Raskiched funds
Unresiricted funds
TOTAL FUNDS

d
2

2022 2021

£ 4 £ £

Té.073 o4 d5]

7,248,743 FA%4 2468

_ATI3,085 3701351

12,118,100 1202070
43,122 44,772
1,357,073 [.53555!

4039104 3799317

5459 3% 5370440
17 fi.Ef_{,HéE

43,3432 DE& 3.584.715

15,440,167 I FHS

147 825 Ie2.037

5,312,343 !E‘ﬁﬁll?lﬁ

5,440,157 i 4,858,785

The inancial statements were approved ond authonsed for Bsue by the Trustees on 20 July 2022

ard signed on their behalf by:

== it

Nir £ W Demlan
Chalmman

The noles on pages 26 1o 51 form pont of these Bnancial stalements,
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THE MYTOMN HOSPICES

(A company limited by guorantes)
CHARITY BALAMCE SHEET
A5 AT 31 MARCH 2022
223 2021
ke £ £ E f 5
FIXED ASSETS
intangible assats 14 76,073 04,451
Tangie assets 15 T.268,543 7494 768
Imvestments 14 4,818,437 3,746,705
12,163 455 11.337 424
CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks [ 32298 30,198
Debtors %9 1,872,441 2013440
Cash at bank and in hand 515::4 2719723
5,073,593 4,943,561
CREDITORS: amounts falling due
within one year 20 _{1,833.250) (1501314}
MWET CURRENT ASSETS 3,240,343 3452247
MET ASSETS 15 THE I&?W‘.ﬁ"l
CHARITY FUNDS
Resticted funds 22 147 825 12,037
Unrestricted funds 22 15,255,973 _ 14,607,434
TOTAL FUNDS u,m,m 14799671

The financial stotemeants were approved and outhorized for ssue by the Trusteas on 20 July 2022

and signed on thalr behalf by;

T N

Nir E W Demilan
Chalrmian

The net incoming resaouwces for the finonciad year deall with 0 the Bnanciad datemants of tha
parant Charity were E404,127 [2021: net Incoming resources £2,.398, 548).

The notes on pages 25 fo 51 form part of these financial siolements,



THE MYTOM HOSPICES
{A company limied by guaraniee)

CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

2022 2021
Mole £ £
Caosh lows from operaling activiiles
Met cash inflow from opearaling activitias 24 1,307 357 2.304.229
Ciosh lows from Invesiing activilles
Dividends and interast from investmeants 34210 70.732
Froceeds from disposal of tongible fixed osseis - 14,954
Purchose of fimed ossets [252.877) #2885
Proceeds from sobe of imiestments 300,382 520,781
Purchiose of investmeants (1,208,476 [F76.719)
Net cash used In Investing activities (1.067.570)  [467.133)
Change Iin cash and cash equivalents in the year 239 T&T  1.B3F.0M4
Cash and cash aquivalents brought forward 3,799,317 I.962.223
Cash ond cash equivalents camled forward 25 4039104 3799.317




THE MYTON HOSPICES
[A company mBed by guaranies)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 MARCH 2022

1. CHARITY INFORMATION

The Myton Hospices (the Chaority] & o Company Umited by Guorantee [registered number
1 428455), registered in Englond and Wales. fis charity registration number is 514287, The registerad
office and principal pioce of business is Mylon Lane, Worwick, CV34 6PX.

Its principal activities are specialst paliative and end of ife care for the people of Coveniry and
Worwickshire, ond provision of educafion in palliclive aond end of Iife core to heolfhcore
professionals in Coventry and Warwickshire,

F 3 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

21 Basis of preparation of inanclal stafements

The fingncial stotements hove been prepored In occordonce with Accounting ond Repording by
Chariles: Stofement of Recommended Frocice applicable to charifies preparning fheir ocoounts
in accordonce with the Anoncial Bepoding Standord opplicoble in the UK ond Repulblic of
reland (FRS102) - (Charifies SORP |FRS 102, the Financial Reporting Standard oppicabile in the
UK and Republic of reland [FRS 102] aond the Compaonies Act 2004,

The Mylon Hosploes meels fhe definilion of o public benafit enfity under FRS 102, Assets and
iabdities cre Inificily recognised ot historical cost or fransaction value uniess othemwise stated in
fhe relevant accounting policy.

The Statement of finonclal octivifles {SOFA) and Balance Sheet cornsobdate the finoncial

statements of the Charfty and #s subsidiary undertoking. The results of the subsidiary ore
corsolidaied on a ine by Ine basis.

Mo separate S0FA hos been presented for the Charity done as parmitted by section 408 of the
Companies Act 2004,

Tnastess have a recsonable expectation thal The Myfon Hosplces has adequate resources 1o
confinue in operational existence for the foreseeable fulure, Thede are no malerdal uncerainties
obout the charity's ability o confinue ond therelore the Tnstees odopt the going concem basis
of occounting In preparning the financial siotements. :

22  Company slatus
The company b o compony imited by guoranies, incorporaled in the United Kingdom. The

members of fihe company ore the Tnustess nomed on page 1. In the event of the company being
wound up, the liability in respect of fhe guoranies i Emited to £1 per member of the company.
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THE MYTON HOSPHCES
(A company limied by guaranies)

HOTES TO THE FIMAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
23 Basis of consolidation

The financial sialements consobidole the occounts of The Myton Hodphces and ol of s subsidiany
underlakings (‘subsidicnies’).

The Chardly hos foken odvonfoge of the exemplion confained within section 408 of the
Companies Act 2004 not o present ifs own Income and expenditure occount,

24 Fund accounting

General funds are unresticted funds which are avallable for use af the discrefion of the Trustees
in futherance of the ganeral objectves of the Charly and which hove not been designoted for

other pupcsas,

Designoted funds comprise unnesincted funds that hove been st oside by the Trustees for
parficulor pupesess. The oim and we of eoch designoted fund s set oul in the notes fo the
finarcial statements.

Resticied funds are funds which are fo be wsed In accordance with specific redfrictions imposad
by donors ar which hove beean raiged by the Charty for porficular purposes. The costs of raising
anrd odministering such funds ore chorged ogainst the specific fund, The aim and wse of each
restricied fund & st oul in the notes 1o the fnoncial sialermenis,

Iwastmeant income, gains and losses are allocated o the appropriate fund,
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THE MYTON HOSPICES
(A company limited by guarontes)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
.5 Income

Al income & recognised once the Chaority has entiiemeant to the income, i s probable that the
income will be received and the omount of iIncome recetvable can be measured refiably,

For lagocies, enfillement is foken a3 the eorfier of 1he dofe on which eithar; the Charity B owone
that probote hos been gronted, the estate has been finoksed and notification bos been moade
by the executod(s) 1o the Trust that a distribution will be mode. or when a distdbufion is received
from the estale. Receipt of o legocy, in whole or in par, is only considered probable when the
amount con be megsured reiably and the Charity has been nofified of the executors Intention
o make o dstibution. Where legocies have been nofified to the Charlty, or the Charlty i oware
of the gronting of probate, and the crilera for ncome recognition have not been med, then the
legacy is reated as o contingent asset and dsclosed If matedal,

Income from govemmeni ond ofher grants i recognised when the charity has entitierment to the
funds, any performonce condifions atfoched fo the grants hove been meal, it s probabile thal e
income will be received ond the amount can be measured reliobly ond B not defemecd.

Income tax recoverable in relafion 1o donafions received under Gift Aid or deeds of covenant i
recognised al the time of the donation,

Income fox recoverable in relafion to investment income is recognised af tha time he investmant
incoma i receivabie.

Donoled services or fociilies ore recogrsed whan the Chaily hos confrol over the llem. any
conditions associoted with the donated fem have been met, the receipt of economic benefil
from the we of the Charty of the itern is probable and the economic benelit can be measured
redabily.

Clothing and other terns donated lor resale through the charity’s shops are included os incoming
resources within other iroding oclivities when they are sold, They are ot Included of valuation
prior 1o being soid as if hos been deemed impractical o measure fhe foir volue of the goods and
the cost of valuation would outweigh the benefif to the users of the accounts.

Thie hosplce receives Ihe help and suppord of up 1o 1,200 volunteers, who help in every aspect of
the organisalion, and are both patient Facing ond within support services, as wall as fundarmentol
in the delivery of fundraising octivilies. Due fo an obsence of o relioble meamremant bass, he
contibution of these genenal volunteers hos nol been occounted lor,

Lottery income s recognised when receivable.

Investiment income B included when recelvalbile,



THE MYTON HOSPICES
(& company Imited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES {conlinued)
2.4 Expanditura

Costs of genarating funds are casts Incured In atfrocfing voluntary income, and those incumed
in trading acfivilies that naise furnds.

Charitobie aoclivifies ond Govemnmonce costs are costs incured on he company's educofional
eperafions, Including support costs and coshs relaling to the govermance of the compary
apporioned 1o charftable octivities,

Expenditure i recognised once there i a legal or construchive chigafion fo moke o poyment to
a third party, thmbl:l:la that sefflement will be required and e amount of tne obigotion con
be meosured reliably.

All expandilure B accounted for on an occruals basis. Al expenses including support cosls and
govemance costs are allocated to the appiicable expendibue headings.

Fundraliing cosls are those incured in seeking voluntory contdbutions and do not includs the

costs of disseminafing information in support of chardtable activities. Specifically, It comprises
those costs of froding for fundroising purposes including the charify's shops ond lothery,

Governance costy include those ooy asockaied with meeling the consfitutional and statutory
requiraments of the chodly and include the cudit fess.

Redundancy payments are occounted for as stoff costs and are recognised on communication
of intantion fo pay.

Al costs afe alocoted betwesan the expendilure cofegofes of the Stotement of Finoncial
Activities on a bosis designed fo reflect the we of the resources. Costs relaling 1o o particular
oaclivity are aliocaled directly. Remaining suppart costs are oll charged 1o chaltcbile expanditure
since those relafing o fundraising ore considerad immaleral,

7 Golng concemn

We hove set out in the Tustees’ Report a review of the finoncial performance and the choarity's
reserves posiion. We hove o reosonable expectalion thal we have adequate resources fo
confinue in operaliond exstence for the foreseeable fulure. We believe that there ame no
miaiedcl uncerhainties thal call nfo doubt the charity's abliity to confinue, The inoncial stalemanis
have therafore bean prepared on the basis that the charity & o going concem.

2.8 intanglble fixed assets and amodisalion

Sofware aisals are stafed af cosl less omorfisafion. Amortisotion i provided of rales colculated
fo write off the cost of infangible ossels, over thek expected useful fvas which i eslimated ol
batween 510 years,

Amortsotion 5 charged 1o expenditure on chattable activifies @ the Stalement of finoncicl
activitles.



THE MYTOMN HOSPICES
(& company limied by guaraniea)

HOTES TO THE AINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

29 Tanglble Axed assels and depreclation
All assats cosfing mone than £2.000 ore copitalised.

A revigw fof impairmenl of a fised asset s caried out where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the camying amount of the fued anat may otherwise be ovanstated. Such eveants
or changes in circumsfonces include chonges in uselul ife arising from changes in businass
acflivities or environmen!, significan! decline in an osset’s market value during the period, or
evidence of obsolescence or physicol domage fo the' asel, Impaoiment losses arling ore
charged 1o the Slatement of finoncial activities,

Where the impaiment b subsequently reduced or removed the camying value is reinstated fo the
lerecer of the revised value of the amount at which it would have been comed hod no Impaiment

occumed, the omount of impairment refecsed being credited 1o the Stolemeant of inonckal
achvilias,

Tangible fxed osels ore comed of cosl, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment.
Depreciation s provided of rotes caolculafed fo write off the cost of fived amets, less their
estimated residual value, over thelr expected useful ives on the lollowing boses;

Freehold property = A - &) years

Freehold land = Mot depraciated

LiTarm leasahold propearty - Orwar the pedod of lease or 50 years, whichewver is lass
Proparty improvements -3~ 10 yeors

Fumiture. eguipment ond vehicles -3 - 10 yeors
Computer ond office equipment -3 - 10 yeaors
Shop and office fittings - Ower pedod of lease

210  nvesimenis

Fxed omel investmeants ore o form of finoncial inslrument and ore inikialy recognised ot ihelr
frarsaction oost and subsequenily measured afl fair value ot the Balance Sheet date, uniess fair
value canndt be measurad reliobly in which case it & measured ol cost less Impairmant.
Investment gains and iosses, whather realsed of unrealsed, are combined and shown in the
heoding 'Galrs/{losses] on investments’ In the Stolement of Ananclal activilles.

(i} Subsidiory undertakings
iInvestmeants in subsidianies are valued of cost less provision for impairmant.

217 Interest recelvable
Interest on fundcs hetd on depasit B included when receivable and fhe amount can e measured

refiakly by the Charity; this s nomally upon notificotion of the interest paid or payalbles by the
Bank.

212 Operaling leases
Reniols under operaling lecses are chorged o the Stotement of Bnancial oclivilies on o straighi
e Dosls over the lease fem, Banafils recelved aond receivable o3 on incenlive to sgn on

openaling lease o recognsed on o stroight line boss over the perod wnlil the date the rent s
sxpecied to be adjusted o the prevaiing market rate.
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THE MYTON HOSPICES
(A compony limited by guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

2, ACCOUNTING POUCIES [confinved)
213 Stocks and work In progress

Stocks and work in progress are volued ol the lower of cost and net reclizable valve after moking
due ollowance for obsolele and siow-moving slocks. Cost Includes oll drect costs and an
approphole proporion of fixed and varioble overheads.

214 Deblors

Trode ond olher debiors ore recognised of the setilement aomount affer any frode dscount
offared.

215 Cosh ot Bank ond In hand

Cash af bank and in hand includes cash and short term highly liquid investments with a shor
maturity of three monihs or less from the date of acquistion or opening of the deposit ar similar
account,

2,14 Crediors and provisions

Liabififies are recognised whan fhene i an obigalicn of the Balonce Sheet dote as o resull of o
past event, it is proboble that a frarsfer of economic banafit will be reguired in satilamant, and
the amount of Ihe setflement con be estimaled rellably. Liobililies ore recognsed at the amount
that the company anficipates I will pay 1o satie 1he debi or the omount It hos recaived o3
advanced payments for the goods of sanvices it must provide, Provisions ame measuned af fhe
best esfimote of the amounts required to setthe the obligafion. Whera the effect of fhe time value
of money s material, the provision is based on the preseni volue of ihose amounts, discounted
at the pre-tax discount rale that reflects the ks specific fo the Roblity. The uwinding of the
discount is recognised within inferest payable ard smilar charges.

217  Fnonclal instruments

The Charily ondy hos inonciol ossets ond finonciol lnbilifties of o kind thot gualify oz boslc financial
Istrumeants. Basic finoncial instruments are initially recogniked of fransoction value and
subsequently meosured at their tetflament value with the excegfion of bank loons which are
swbsegquently memsured of amoriised cost using the effective interast method.

218 Penslons

The Chority operates o defined confribulicn pansion schame and the pansion chorge represants
the amounts payable by the Charity to the fund in respect of the year.

The Charlly operates a defined benelils persion scheme, The scheme iz o mulli-employer scheme
where it is not possible, in the nomal course of events, 1o identify on o consislent and reasonobile
basis, fhe share of underying assets and liabilifies belonging 1o individual participaling employers.
Therefore the Chardty accounts for this scheme as § it wos o defined coniibufion schema. Tha
amount charged to the Statemeant of inancial activities reprasants confibutions payable 1o the
scheme inrespect of the ooccounting perod.
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THE MYTOMN HOSPICES
(A company limied by guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued)

2.1%  Significont judgements and esiimotes

Preparofion of the finoncial stolements moy require manogemen! to make significant
judgemenis and estimates.

Sigrifcani judgemants

Donated goods for resale are nof incieded at valuation orior 10 being sold o it hos bean deemad
impracfical to measure fhe far volue of the goods ond the cost of valualion would outweigh tha
benefit to the users of the ocoounts.

Significan! estimales
Thare ard no significant estimates hoving o maotenial effect on the fincncial stalemants.

2.3  Agency amongements

The Charity acts as an agent in cdministering funds for "GP PMS Education” on bahall of the NHS
and in administering funds for the project "difficult convensations® on behcll of the NHS. Income
and expenditure in relation to fhe profects ore excluded from fhe statement of finroncial aclivifies
as the Charity does not have conirgl over the charitable applicafion of the funds. The funds
received and poid and any balonces held are disclosad innote 21,

3 INCOME FROM DONATIONS AND LEGACIES

Urnrestricted Resircied Talal Tl
hands funds funds functs
2022 2022 2022 2021
£ £ £ £
Donafions 2,330,918 T42.84% 2 ATI TRT 2458845
Legocies 1. 769 597 = 1LTEREFT 1,304,513
Grants
Lacal Authority infection Canirol - 0,748 70,748 102,874
Hosplce UK Covid-19 - 239,733 239733 1. 554,152
Relall, Hospitolty and Leisure Fund 81,337 - 81,337 335197
Coranviius Job Refention Scheme arnaz = armnz QorFr3
Better Care Fund - a . 45,500
Totol donations, legocies and grants 4219.764 473350 4493114 4720674
Total 2021 5?05,53& _E"‘HIEFIJE g‘ﬂﬂi



THE MYTON HOSMCES
(& company limited by guarontes)

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

4, INCOME FROM CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES

Unresiricled Tohal Tofal
funds funds Furicls
202 2022 2027
£ £ £
MNHS grants and confracts for potient care 2475922 ZTARSENIZ 1454149
Education and fraining income 33,155 33,155 5454
¥ yorr 2
Tokal 2021 2.659.603 2459803
5. OTHER TRADING INCOME - FUNDRAISING INCOME
Unresiiched Tobal Todal
funds funds funds
2022 2022 2021
£ £ £
Relall income 2,064,347 2,046,347 778,754
Lottery income 2149350 2149350 2,160,631
CHbver InCorme 24,953 26,953 88335
4,262,851 4262451  3.005720
Tokal 2021 2005720 3005720
[ INVESTMENT INCOME
Unresticted Tobal Toital
funds furvcts funds
2022 022 2021
£ E £
interest 423 422 1,357
Dividend income 2879 72.89% a9375
BRI B 70732
Total 2021 70,732 70,732
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THE MYTOMN HOSPICES
[{A company [imied by guaranies)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

T AMALYS1S OF EXPENDITURE BY EXPENDITURE TYPE

Eqpendifure on raising valurtany

and frading income

Expanditure on investment

ranogemeant
Cost of ralsing lunds

Expenditure relating 1o dedivery

patiant core

Total 2021

B. EXPENDITURE ON RAISING VOLUNTARY AND TRADING INCOME

Relcl and loltery costs
Fundraising cosis

Staff costs
Deprechation

Stafl Depreciation Oiher Texbal Tl
cosls cosls 2022 2021
£ £ £ £ £
1.562,06% = 14530%F A 015148 2959447
. ; 22,497 22497 17.073
1,562 D&Y - TA757%& 3037 HES 2974740
of NHS grants and confrocts for 5,994,335 498,280  1.634,534 8,129.149  7.457.969
7,556,404 478,280 3112330 11,147,014 10,834,729
7264,61) 533,892 2834226 10,634,729
Unreshicted Tedal Total
funds tunds funds
2022 2022 202
E £ £
1351413 1351413 1,274,882
101,486 101,484 73,379
1.562,067 1,542,080  1.811.046
= - 380
3015168 3015148 2.059,667
2080887  2.059.667

Tofal 2021
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THE MYTOM HOSPICES
(A company limited by guarontes)

MNOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

9. ANALYSIS OF EXPENDITURE BY ACTIVITIES
Aclivities  Supper

undertaken costs
directly
£

Tohal
2021

MHS granis ond confracts for pafient care §,929 447 1,199,702 B.129,14% 7457989

Tokal 2021 6.421.570 1238419 7457089

1o DIRECT COSTS = NHS GRANTS AND CONTRACTS

2022 2021

3 £

Drugs 207470 184722
Medicinal supplies 100 37F 149339
Clearing and laundny a5 870 32511
Catering 54,135 43,604
Small equipment 128,859 30.944
Tradning 43 544 an1e
Govamonce (225} 14,700
Contracted medical staff 284,777 288,974
Woges and salaries 5152821 4852423
Nafonal insurcrcs 448 254 416,550
Persion coul a3 an 374,392

6,929,447 6,421,570

Total 2021 _6a21570_
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THE MYTON HOSPICES
(A company limited by guarantee)

HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 37 MARCH 2022

11. SUPFORT COSTS - NHS GRANTS AND CONTRACTS

20232 2020
£ £
Premises costs 193,372 157, 104
Troveling and subsistence 19,344 348,384
Office costs 127,280 137,148
Repairs and rengwals 144,945 144,841
Legal and professional (14 463) 43,477
Stoff recruitmend ' 11,514 3.032
CHher costs 217 408 177,009
Loss on disposal of fongible ixed assels . 19,780
Amoriiation 18,378 19292
Deprecialion m,m 514,240
1199702 1.236.41%
Toiaf 2021 IFEJH
1. NET INCOME/[EXPENDITURE)
This k& stofed offer chorging:
2022 2021
£ £
Depreciclion of fongible fixed amets
- owned by the charitable group 479,502 514,600
Auditor's remunenation - oudif 14,025 13500
Auditor's remunengtion - non-aucii . 00
Auditor's emunenation - fax 1,250 1,250
Operating lease rentals 420614 477929

During the yedr. no Tnstees received any rermunerdation (2021 - ENil}
During the yeor, no Trustees received any benefits in kind [2021 - ENil)
During the yeor, no Trustess received any reimbursement of experses (2021 - ENIl)



THE MYTON HOSPICES
(A company imied by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

13, STAFF COSTS

SHaft cosis wera as follows:

2022 2021

£ £

Wages and salanes 4,545 548 4311519
Social security costs 555,711 518,295
Oher parsion costs 455,135 434 795

7,556,404 7264 509

Non-siatutony/non-confractud terminafion poymants totoling £MIl (2021: £81,051) were mods
o N (2021 22) employees.

The average number of perscrs empéoyed by the company duing the year was as

follorers:
Hoz2 2021
Mo =8
282 300

The number of higher paid amployees was:

in the band £50,001 to £70,000 J
in the bond £70,001 1o £80,000 !
in the bond E90,001 fo £100,000 I I

—

O fhe higher paid employess there is 1| mamber of the medical team whom is pald on the NHS
scale (2021:1)

1)



THE MYTOMN HOSPFICES
[A company limlied by guoranfes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

14, INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Group ond Company
Cosl
Al T Apdl 2021 and 31 March 2022

Amorfisaflon
AL 1 Apd 2021
Chaorge for the year

Al 31 March 2022

198,510

104, 05%
18,378

122 437

Carrying Amount
Al 31 March 2022 74,073
Al 31 March 2021 V4,451
15, TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Long Fumniiure, Compuber
Freehold Leasehold egulipment & cifice
Property Property & vehicles equipment Total
£ £ £ E i

Group
Cosl
Al 1 Apdl 2021 3,797,813 T.763.510 2104201 384,373 14,051,937
Addiilon 15,644 12,152 221,858 2,925 152,577
Al 21 March 2002 3,815,457 7,775,442 2,324,077 JAT 318 14,304 514
Depreclalion
Al 1 Apdl 2021 1,875 53%% 2767100 1,641,848 2 .as & 555 649
Chaorge for the yeor 55119 230,481 140,835 33447 47F 902
Al 31 Morch 2022 1,930,458 29974812 1,802,683 304.618 70355
Hat book value
Al 31 March 2022 1,884,707 4,778,050 523.3%4 a2, 700 7,248 943
At 31 March 2021 1,924,274 4,994,.37% 462,373 113242 7. 496,268

included in freshold property s kand of £1,114,19% which is not depreciated.
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THE MYTOMN HOSPICES

(A company limited by guarantee)

MOTES TO THE FIMAMCAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

15.  TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS CONTINUED

Long

Furnlfure,

Freehold Lleasehold egquipment

Computer
L office

Property Property B vehicles equipment Tolal
£ £ 3 E E
Chartty
Cosl
At 1 Apdl 2021 3799813 7758510 2,104,211 384,393 14,044,737
Additions 15,444 12182 227 854 2925 252 877
Al 3] morch 2022 AB815457  T.7T0.662 2,326 077 B|rna 14:2!'?.5"
Depreclofion
Al 1 April 2021 1.475.52% 2,762,130 1,641,848 2rn.s &,550 447
Charge for the year 55119 230,481 160,835 33,447 479,902
A1 31 March 2022 1,730,658 2992612 1,802,683 304,618 7,030,571
Het book value
Al 31 March 2022 1,884, 79% 4,778,050 523,374 82,700 7.268 943
Al 31 March 202 | | 924,274 4, 708.37% 462,373 113,242 796,248
Included in freehold property is kand of £1,114,199 which s not deprecioled.
16, FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS
Listed
Group securlfes Land Tolal
£ E £
Moarket Value
AT April 202 3,433,851 &7 500 2,701 351
Additions 1.208.6%4 . 1,208, 694
Disposals (200,382) + (300,382)
Revoluations 163,420 - 163 420
Al 31 March 2022 4,705,585 &7.500 4,773,085
Group Investments ot market value comprise: 2022 2020
£ £
Listed investrmerts 4,705,585 3.633.851
Criher fixed assef mvestments &7 500 47500
Total morkel volue 4,773,085 3.701,351
All of the fixed asset inmvestmients one hald in the UK
3 March 31 Maorch
Group materal investments 2023 2021
£ £
Vanguard Funds PLC 41%.001 346,345
Artamis Fund Maragers US Salach indstl 134,832 184,237
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THE MYTO'N HOSPICES
(A company limied by guarantee)

HOTES TO THE FINANCAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

14, FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS (continued)

Listed
securiftes Lland Subsidiories Tahal
£ £ £ £
Charfty
Markel Value
AL T A pail 2021 3,633,851 &7 500 45,354 3,745, TOS
Additicns 1,208,498 - - 1,208,494
Disposals (300,383) - - [300.382)
Rewauaiions 163,420 - - 143,420
At 31 March 2022 4,705, 5858 47,500 d45.354 4818437
Charlly Investments af markel value comprise:
2022 2021
£ £
Listed invesiments 4,705,585 3,633,851
Cifhar fixad assat investmeni &7.500 67,500
Group 45,354 45,354
Total 4818437 3746705

Al Tha fixed assed investments ara heldd in the UE

1w FRINCIF AL SUBSIDIARIES

100% of the issved share capifal of Mylon Hospice [Promotions] Limited and Myton Homiet
Hospice Development Umited Is held by the Charity,

Myton Hospice [Promotions) Lirmited operates charity shops and a lottery to roise funds for the
Charily, The company pays its foxable profits fo the Charity by woy of Gift Ald, The compony |s
registerad in Englond and ifs company rumber 5 2663993, In oddifion fo fis froding results
disclosed below, fhe compony processed soles of E484,978 (2021 £204,990] relating fo donated
goods sold under the relol Gift Aid scheme. Thiese figures are included o retal income on he
Stotement of Finonciol Activities.

Myton Homéet Hosplce Development Limited develops ond bullds properfies which ane then scid
ta the Charity. The company b registered in Englond and iz comparny numiber is 3059410,
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THE MYTON HOSPICES
(A company Imihed by guarantes)

MOTES TO THE FINANCAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 37 MARCH 2022

17 PFRINCIFAL SUBSIDIARIES [continued)
Mylon Mylon Homiel

Hozplce Hosplce
{Fromotiona) Development
Lirmited Lim#ed

£ £
Gross income 3479477 H
Expendiiure (2,534.499) (74é)
Gift aid to tha Charfly (1,145,178) .
Loss in the perod - (74)
£ £
Met assets/|liobiifies] ot the year end 108,630 [1.%07)
18, STOCKS

Group Charlty
2022 2021 2022 2020
£ - 3 £ £
Consumabliss 3,773 29,440 31,793 29440
Goods for resols 31,329 15332 505 758
43,122 44,772 32,298 30,198

1% DEATORS
Gioup Charfty
2022 2021 2022 2021
£ £ £ £
Trade deblors LE2.047 707,848 482,047 F07. 848
Amounts owed by group undenakings . - &57 575 515,853
Orfher dabtors 114,285 Io0.oee 109,574 22, 140
Prepgayments and accruad inc £58. T F27 404 423,363 507, 100

1357093 1535551 1872481 2013640
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THE MYTON HOSPICES
(A company imied by guaranies)

NOTES TO THE FINANCAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

20. CREDITORS: amounts lalling due within one year

Group Charfty

| 2021 2022 2021

£ £ £ £

Trode crediton 363 467 234,073 327 244 215700
Amounts owed (o group undertakings . - -
Other taxation and social securty 143,084 122,940 143,084 122,940
Chiher credibors 100,401 43,132 100, 401 43 132
Acciuals and defered income 1510301 1414780 1262521 1119542
2,117,253 [814,925 1,833,250 1,501,314

Group Charity

Defemred ncome £ £ £ £
Defamed income of 1 Apdl 2027 P87 4623 827.54% 807,133 &4 5,044
Resources deferad during the yvear 24,747 342577 - 142,087
Amourits releaied from previous years [180.470) {182.503) (141.870) =
Defared income ot 31 March 2022 831,880 QA7.623 545.243 807,133

Defered income comprises lottery incoma received in advance by Myton Hospice [Promotions)
Limited of £184,4617 (2021: £180.490]. Challenge Event income of £30.378 [2021: £47,068), Funding
for Poulimey £NIl (2021 £4,180), Funding for Guality end of Life core for all ingining courses of £4,900
(2021: £28,800), D'Oyly Trust income of ENIl {2021 £3,500). NHS grants and confracts for palient
care income of £599,785 |2021: £596.585) ard donation income received in advance of £10,000
(2021: £125.000].

21, AGENCY ARRANGEMENTS

The Chaity octs as an agent in administering funds for "GP PMS Education” on beholf of fhe NHS.
In Ihe cccounting pediod ending 31 Morch 2022 fhe Chorily recelved E£Mil (2021 £NI) ond
disbursed £7.987 (2021: £3.874) from the fund. An amount of £11,24% (2021: £19,2548) I included in
other crediions relafing to undistibuled funds.

The Charity acts as an agent in odministering funds for the project “difficult conversations™ on
behall of the MHS. In fhe accounting pedad ending 31 March 2022 the Charity received £NIl [2021:
M) aond disbursed £2.561 (2021 ENII} from the fund. An omount of ENIl (2021 £2,541) b Included in
other crediiors reloling to undistibubed funds,



(A company limited by guarantee)

THE MYTOMN HOSPICES

NOTES TO THE FINANCAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

a2, STATEMENT OF FUNDS
Bolance at  hcome Expendiure Transfers Galns/ Balance af
1 Apdl infoul  (Losses) 31 March
2021 2022
£ £ £ £ £ £
Designated funds
Fixed aual fund 7590719 - (498,280) 252,577 - 136018
rvestmeant fund 3,701,351 92,899 (22.697) 838,012 143420 4,773,085
Sarice exparsion fund 142,524 - (25,794) . - 114,730
Warwick hospice 500,000 - - - 500,000
irmprovemants fumnd
Project funds:
‘Worwick [PU beds D, OO0 - - - 300,000
Estates and eguipment 11060, 000 = (32.237) &7.7TY
capital expenditure
Exponding services 500,000 - (11,453) - - 4B 547
bayond Warwick walls
Digital strategy and 100, 000 (18,055) 100,000 181,945
tronsformafion progact
Income generafion 100,000 - = (100,000) -
opportunilies
Pandemic recavery 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000
14,034,594 92,899  (576,279) 1,058,448 163,420 14,773,102
- Feneral funds
Genenal Furds - all 630,154 11,040,727 (10,187 981) (P&3,440) = E39.240
fuiruicls
Tolal Unrestricied funds 14,464,748 11,133,426 (10,744 260) 4,808 163,420 15312342
Resiricted funds
Other donations 144,702 142,867 (91,708)  (49.703) - 124,180
Vahiche fund AT 235 - (545) {25,105) - 21 4465
Hospice UK Covid-1% = 239,733 (239,733) - - -
fumnd
Local Autharity Infection - 70,748 {70,748) . -
Contnol fund
192,037 473 350 [422,754) (74.808) 147,825
Total of funds 14,856,785 11,606,976 (11,147,014 - 143,420 15440147
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THE MYTOMN HOSPICES
(A company [imited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

2, STATEMENT OF FUNDS (confinued)
STATEMENT OF FUNDS - PRIOR YEAR

Balonce af hcome Expenditre Tronsfers Galns) Bolaonce of

Apd 3020 infoul  (Losses) 31 Mavch
2021
£ £ £ £ £ £
Designated funds
Fxed awel fund B.041 442 - [553.642) 82,809 = FIN07I9
Feestrmignd hund 2,684,384 375 (1F.073] £02.434 60027 A.701.351
Senice expansion fund 155,400 - {12.578) " - 142,524
Retall support fund 445,000 - [44.5,000) » . 2
Warwick Hosplce 75,000 - - 425000 = 500,000
improvernents fund
Froject funds:
Warwick IPU badh - - - 300,000 - F00.000
Estales and equipment . - - 100,000 - 100000
capital expeandifure
Expanding sarvices - = - 500,000 - 500,000
beyond Warwick Walls
Digital sirategy ond . . = 100,000 - 1 00,000
frarstormation praject
Income generation " . s 100.000 - 100000
opporiunities
Pondemic recovery - = 1,000,000 - 1000000
11423248 9375 [LO2ESRI) 3010535 580027 14,034,504
Goeneral funds
General Funds - ol 079,435 10,388,106  [7.785.480) [2,951,907) - 430,154
Purics

Tolol Unrestriicted funds 12,402,683 10.457.48]  (8.814.071) 58.628 560,027 14,664,748

Restriched funds
Other donafions 5&, 185 248112 {153,057) {4,538) - 144,702
Vehicle fund - 100,000 1575 (52.000) - 47,335
Hospice UK Covid-19 - 1.5a4,152  [1.544,152) : 5 z
furd
Lecal Authorty Infection - 102874  (102.874) -
Contrel fund

56,085 ZO015138  [1.820.458 (58,528 . 192,057
Total of funds 12,456,868 12.472.619 (10,634,729 - 560,037 14,856,785




THE MYTON HOSFICES
(A company limibed by guaranhea)

NOTES TO THE FINANCAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

22,  STATEMENT OF FUNDS (confinued)

The majorty of fronsfers between funds represent the designafion of projact funds ond the
amount spent on fised ossels, which, now that the income has been spend I accordanca wifh
the donor's wishes, hove been tronsfemed fo the designofed fixed asset fund.

Designoled funds
Fixed assels fund

& lorge porl of the unresticied funds of the Chally ore represented by fongible fixed osseis
{mainly lond and bulldngs| reguired for the Charity to corfinue operating. As these asels are
consdenaed nol nanmally realisabde, ihe Trustees hava dasignated funds aqual fo Hheir ook value,

Irvvestrment fund

I the year ended 31 March 2001, the Trustess set aside £2,000.000 in on irmvesiment fund with the
aim of providing o regular source of incomea each year. Gains and kssas on thea invastmants heald
are credited or charged o the fund eoch yeor and the yeor end bolaonce eguals the morket
volue of investments held.

SanvicE axporsion

In the year endad 31 March 2014, the Truslees designoted funds of £750,000 fo seed fund o
numbsar of new services between 2015 and 2018, These funds include £230,000 matched funding
received from NHS South Warsickshing CCG for thie Good fo Greal project.

Retai suppart fund

In the yeor ended 31 March 2020, the Trustess designated funds of £445,000, The fund represented
govemment granis recehable under the Retal, Hospitality ond Leiure Gront Fund to support the
business costs of the charity shops during the COVID-17 pandemic.

Warwick Hospica improvemenis fund

iy the yeor ended 31 March 2020, the Trustess designaled funds of E75,000 fo fund improvements
fo the Warwick Hosplce, Tha Tnusleas designated an aoddifional E425,000 & the year ended 31
borch 2021,

Project funds

I thiz yaar anded 31 March 2021 the Trustess dasignoted funds for the following projects in order
to ersure fhe Hosploe's susiainabliity and fo extend the reoch of fhe Hosploe's services 1o those
whio cumenily do not aoccess them:

i. A designoted fund ol £300,000 for fhe use of opening 4 beds in Warwick [PU. The PU in
Worwick wos reduced 1o 12 bads due o reducing numibens of referrals throughou! the
pandemic. Work B ongoing o improve the relalionship with refemers in Waorwick, Once
fhiere i demand over and above 12 Bads this funding would allow the recruitmeant of staff
agnd re-opening of 4 bads. Post frends show that increasing patient numbers ako
comelates with increased voluntary income through donations.



THE MYTON HOSPICES
(A company Bmied by guorantes)

MOTES TO THE FINANCAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

22,  STATEMENT OF FUNDS [continued)

Z A deslgnoted fund of £100,000 is proposed for use on caplfal expendiure on repiocemant
equipment and fo make iImprovements ho the Hospices. These projects had previously
been declined of budget seifing due lo financial constraints. Now we sea that our
fowvourable fironcial position ghves w the opporurity 1o invast in owr sSles, improving ther
sustainakbiliiy,

4. A designoled fund of £500,000 for the Investment in “Expanding our services beyond The
Hospice walls™. This funding would glow the Hospice to “pump prime® inflofives, ond
prove the concept, with the intenfion that funding / commissioning orgonlsathons will
agree fo fund the future sarvices ance proven. Plans for our expansion into the community
ane ongoing and any application of these funds will be agreed by the usual process by
baing agreed by the board of trustess.

4. A designated fund ol £100,000 for the Digllal Sralegy ond Tronslormation project. This
projact wil review the dofo held within the orgonisotion ond what T solufions cowld help
with the odministrafion and storoge of this dofo. Mew systems o monoge dato will be
propoded and the costs of the scoping work and néew systam implemantation will come
aut of this fund.

5 A designoled fund of £100,000 for Investment In new Income Generolion opportunities.
Ow income generation porffolo is expansive and varded bul very much focused on
frodifional fundralsing methods. There have been o couple of commerncial opportunities
thol Myton hos nol explored because of the sk imvolved in spending money ot could
be spent on pollent services, especially when nances ane fight, This imvestrment fund will
make possible the explorotion of new income generation ideos and will allow a maore
enireprenaurial and low rék approach 1o puriuing sulloble commercial opportunilies,

4. The Board of Trusiees have ogreed lo designate £1m os o COVID recovery fund.,, The focus
B nowy on recovery and the londscope for Income generation is s#lll uncariain, This fund
would be used as security fo meet the cash flow needs in the coming year if necessary.

Eesiicted fnds

Variows donafions received for other specific punposes kaid down by the donos ore camed
Forwnard os restricted funds unifl spani.

SUMMARY OF FUNDS - CURRENT YEAR

Balance af Balance of

1 Apil Transters  Gains/ 31 March

2021 hcome Expendiure nfout (Losses) 2022

K £ £ £ 3 £

Dasigruated funds 14,034 594 T2.89% (576,279} 1,058 448 143,420 14773102
Genenal funds 430,154 11040727 (10,167.781) [963.660) = S3%240
14,454,748 11,133,626  (10,744,240) 74.808 183,420 15312342

Resticled funds 192037 473380 (422.754) {#4,808) z 147 625

14,854 785 11,606,976 (11,167,014) - 163,420 15,460,167
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a2, STATEMENT OF FUNDS {confinued)

SUMMARY OF FUNDS - PREVIOUS YEAR

Bolance of Balance of

I April Transfers  Gains/ 31 March

2020 hoome Expendifure infouf {Losses) 2021

£ £ £ £ £ £

Designated hunds 11,423,248 69375  [LO2BSVY)  A000.535  560.027 14,034,594
12402683 10,457,481  [B.B14,071) SB.408 540,027 14,664,748

Resficted funds 185 1 {58 &638] 192037

12458,868 12,472.819 |

10,634,729 =

540,027 14,856,785

23, AMALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEMN FUNDS

ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS - CURENT YEAR

infongible fixed amals
Tangibie fived ossels

Fieed omel nvethmants
Cument assets

Creditons due within ane yeor

AMNALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS - PRIOR YEAR

intangible fixed asseis

Tangible fixed asels

Fived asial invasimants
Cument ossets

Craditon due within one year
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Unresiricled Resiricied Tatal
funds funds funds

2022 022 2022

£ £ £

76,073 - 74,073
7,248,943 - T7.268.943
4773, = 47730085
5.311.4%4 147,825 5457.31¢
{2.117.253) - {2.117.253)

Unresfricfed Resincled Total
funds funcs fumcls

2021 DR 2020

£ E £

P 450 - o450

7408, 248 - 7404 248
3,701,381 = 3.701.35]

£ 187403 192,037 5.370.440
{1.814,525) - (1814925
|4 464, 748 192.037 14855785




THE MAYTOMN HOSPICES
(A company Imied by guorontes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

24, RECONCIUATION OF NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES
Group
T2 2021
£ £
Het income/f{expendifure} for fhe year [as per Sfotermend of 403 382 2397917
Fnancial Activiiies)
Adjustrnent for:
Depraciafion aond amordisation cha 458,280 533,892
Goirs on investments 1463,420) [560,027)
Dividends ond Interest from investmants [¥3,321) {70732
(Increasa)/decrease in stocks [18.350) 4,091
Decremsa/|{noreasa) in debtors 1768, 458 (78, 1.50)
[Decraose}/iIncrease In credion 302,328 57.458
Loss on disposal of tangible fixed - 19.780
cxsets
Net cash Inflow from operating aclivities 1,307,387  2.304.29%
25, AMNALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EGLIVALENTS
Group
2022 2021
£ f 3
Cosh In hand 4,035,104  ATRRIIT
Tatbal 4,059,104 Lree 317

24, PEMSICN COMMITMENTS

Staff may opt to join o defined conliadion persion schema, fhe ossels of which are haid
separately from those of the charty in independently administered funds, The emplover's
contibufian fo thit schame i betweaen 2% ond 10% (2021; 2% ond 10%) of perslonabile poy,

Sloff previously employved by the Nalional Health Service and who were members of the MHS
Superannuation Scheme confinue 1o be members of that schame. The NHS scheme & o defined
benafil pension scheme. Howavear, tha schema B a mulliple employer schieme and the group &
unable to idenlify its share of the underying ossets and lioblifies. The scheme & therefore
accounted for as a defined confibufion scheme, Conlributiors are charged to the SOFA so a3
to spread the cost of pensions over employees’ working lives with the charity,

Details of the benefils payable under these provisions can be found on the NHE Pensions webslte
af www ks bsa.nhs. uk/nks-pensions

The employer's confribufion fo the scheme s 14.38% [2021: 14,38%) of pensionable pay.
The pergion cost charges, representing employers confribufions 1o both schemes, omourted 1o

E455,135 [2021: E434, 795}, Confributions fololing ££5.907 [2021: EMNi] were poyable af the year
&nd and are Included In other creciiors,



THE MYTOMN HOSPICES
(A company limlied by gearantee)

MNOTES TO THE FINANCAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

28, PEMSION COMMITMENTS [continued)

Fulure conlibutions ore expeched 1o be of o smilar leved,

Mo irustes gualified for benafils under aither of 1hese schames.
27,  OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 Mareh 2022 the lolod ol the groups future minmum lease paymeants under nan-canceloble
cparafing leases was:

Group 2022 202
Amounts payable £ £
Within | yesr 303,792 03,759
Batween | ond 5 yean 442 BE2 325993
After maore thon 5 yeors 146, 656 .
Tolal 873,530 G297 52

At 31 March 2022 the Charity had onnual commitments under non-concelioble operoling leoses
as follows:

Charfty 20232 2021
Amounts payable 4 £
Within 1 vear 237 524 260,259
Betwean | ond 5 yeors 384,842 266,385
After mare thon 5 yeon Tdé 454 -
Tobal 771,024 S26,845

28, RELATED PARTY TRAMSACTIONS

There hove besn no ofher relofed party ronsoctions thal require disclosure oines than
frorsachons with ihe wbsddiary company Myton Hospice (Promotions] Umibed o sel oul below:

2022 202

E E

mMonogament faes #3142 934543

Payroll costs rechanged 1,118,612 [.114,794

Income frem donated goods under the refall Gift Aid B35, 105 251,343
scheme

i ald tronsfered to fhe Chorty 1,145,718 I, 150770

Manogemen! fees were colculated o5 o propotion of the senior leodenhip tearms salarkes, ond
overhieods of the managamen! company.

Payroll cosis relote fo fhe salares of the employees who are paid by Mylon Hospice, yet work
within one of Mylon Hospice Promofions Limiled services.

Income from donated goods under the refall Gifi Ald scheme are sales which were processed

by Myton Hoopice [Promotiors] Limited on behall of the Chorty and ore Included under retail
e,
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28,  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Gift oid relates to gift oid recovered by Myton Hospice (Promofions) Limited on behall of the
Charity.

The bolonce oubiianding af the year end owed from Myton Hospice (Promotions) Limiled was
£455,84% (2021: E414,759). The balance oulstonding of the year end owed to Mylon Hospice
(Promations) Lmited was Wil {2021 £H8),

The bolance ouistanding ol the yeor end owed from Mylon Hambet Hospice Development
Limited wos £1.707 [2021: £1.094).

The key manogemeant perscnnel of the chorlly compese the CEO ond Directors of Income
Generglion, fnance ond Commercial Development, Nusing and Core, Strategy and
informnation, HR and the Medical Director, The fotal employes benefits of the key mancgement
penonnel of the charily wene E577,142 (2021: £539,541].

m. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Group Charity

2022 2021 2022 2021
Financial ossets £ E £ E
Finoncial ossats measured at fair valus
through Income and expendiiune 4,705, 585 3,433,851 4,750,939 3470205
Financial ossets thal are debt
Irsiuments measured of omoriised
cost 5000008 5002026 4130210  4.122.985
Financlal Hakillifes
Finanichal labiliies
reasurad ol amartised
coslt 1,142 288 J04 362 1,044,704 571,241

Fncncial assets maosurad ol foir value through income and expendiiune comprses investmants
in UK Bsted securilies. Fnoncial asets measured of omodised cost comprise cash af bank, frade
debiors and oconed income. Fnancial Babiliies meosured of amorised cost comprise trode
craditons, accruak and other creditors,

The group's Income, expense, ool and losses in respect of financial instruments are summarsed

below:
Group Charlly
SR 2021 i 2021
£ E £ £
Tolal rvestment ncome for finoncial
asels mecsiured of fair value through
income and expenditure §2.89% 67257 ¥.897 %257
Met galnsfllossas) on finconcial assels
measured ot falr valee fhrough income

and expendiiung 163,420 580027 143,430 550,027
Total [vedmen! income for fnancial
osely maasured of amaorfised cost 42 [.357 &x3 1.357



THE MYTOMN HOSPICES
(A company limied by guarantes)

WOTES TO THE FINANCAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

0.  CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Al 31 March 2022 the Charily hod capital commiltments for leasabold improvemants of ENE (202 1:
£27.438).
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